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The purpose of setbing up a fighter group on this Base was twofdld.

First, both the Zast and Vest Coasts of the United States were vulner-

able to attack from enemy plases and this location was easily accessible

to both the Atlantic and Gulf Ccasts of Florida., Also, the Fighter Com-
nand School was establisned at the Fairgrounds in urlando,

The purpose of assigning the IMighter Ceommand School to this area
vas to provide a year-around center for the training of controllers,
filter officers and other personnel to be used in directing fighters for
the purpose of defense. This called Ior signzl alr-warning battallons,
searchlight battslions, fighter control sguadrons and fighter squadrons,

The first major function of the School, as has been previously
stated, was to train Fighter Control perscumel, lany of the first key
personnel had commercial telephone experience in civilian life. Our
own Fighter Control experience was meager. Therefore, it was necessary
to call in our British Allies for assistance.

At the time that the School was first opened, the word "Ladar" was
something to be_spoken behinc closed doors. It was the maln weapon
thét kept the United Nations alive duriang the early vyears of the war

and it has steadily increased in importance as both a defensive and

offensive weapon,
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An arca of approximately - square miles was acquired North of the
Base and just across the Cheney Highway. DBuilaings were of cinder and
concrete blocks set in orange groves and pine trees. llost of them were
one-story, but there were also a number cf special building such as
auditoriums and hangar-type buildings for large classes.8

In addition tc the School, this Wew Area provided for warehouses,
cold storage facililties, and ammunition dumps. These Tacilities were

—\_—_/\
located in the Southwest portion of the New Area, In the Northeast

New aly rields were construclted all over Central Florida to handle
a vastly enlarged troining and tesbilng program. FPlans were underway for
a demonstration air force, The key positions were to be held by personnel who
had actual combat experience, They were to prepare model installations and
organizations which, after careful lesting, would be used as guides for
. N . e
gimilar Air Force organizabions throughout the world,
R OF R OU K K KK X F R K K KX KK K K A R A K R H KKK KX X ¥

8. Sée aerial photos of entire area and also of the New Area

(Appendix 88 and £9).
9.' The map (Appendix 90) shows all of the principal installations

acquired.,
10



The increase in planes necessitated enlargement of the maintenance and
supply facilities of the 85th Sub-Depot at the Orlando Air Base, These fa-
cilities were used to care for the requirements of the entire area. The
355th Fighter Group left early in 1943. The Night Fighter Squadrons (the
348th and 34%9th) were placed under the new 8lst Night Fighter Division and

the fighter squadron designatiion, which had beer used to start the Night

Fighters, was returned to the 50th to give them a totzsl of three operational

squadrons.
Signal Corps persomnel were cut to a bare operational minimum and the

balance werc either sent overseas or absorbed by Air Corps units. The first

conbingent of WAAC personnel arrived to learn the duties of Fighter Control
persomnel, However, bthey wers not the first feminine students. In the sum-
mer and fall of 1942, Canadian Womens' Auxiliary personnel were trained at
the Fair Grounds, |

_The'types of planes were increased by the addition of heavy, medium, ¥

1ight, and dive bombers, as well as troop carriers.® liost of %hese Planes were 17
based at satellite fields. The 50th Group Headguarters and one squadron (the
8lst) were moved to Signal Hill and remained on the Base for the first part

of 1943. The Base was ioo crowded for the other squadrons because the Sth

Bemb Group (H) had been formed. Key positicns were held by personnel

11
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As soon as the cadres finished this portion of their cceurse, they joined
the rest of their groups for staging and overseas assignments,

The Hight Fighters startei forming squadron cadres and shipping them
overseas. In January 1944, the remaining personcnel were transferred to
California to do all of their training on the West Coast, JSearchlight
and contrcller missions were taken over by the 50th Group.

Never and faster fighter planes began to roll off the assembly lines
in the latitcr part of 1942, Acceptance tests were run on these planes at
Wright Field, Daytcn, Chio. 'They were lthen tested at the AAF Proving
Ground al &glin ¥ield, Florids. is a turther cneck, the AATF Beard had
them tested for combat suitability. The 50th Greoup was chosen {or this
latter series of tests because it was the mest stable and experienced of
the fighter zroups remaining in this cocuntry.

The pilots and ground personnel started tactical tests and trials

N .

of the Repuilic i-47, which wes

Q

eveloped frem the old P-43. These tests
were pericrrad for the ww Locrd under the direction of the Fighter De-
velopment and Test Sectlon, This Section was located on the Main Base

and was organized with the assistance of RAF personnel who had done simi-

lar viork for the Brit:
The acdition of the test work was too much to be hendled by the

50th Greup along with the cadre training., Therefore, & new squadron was
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writer of this history wios comnceied priveipally with fishier units
and this introducition is written from hie porsonal obserwvationg and
,

ve a detailed account of the Command

1t to present the reader with a general
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cal training were similar.

stay ai this Bage wus, fov the wost part, rather brief. The group was
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The 1lst Bemb 3guadron (H) went to Brooksvilles

R - -
in November 1942,

ArmysAdroPield ot that time. This ficld is about nlles West of

The 5th Semadron went a3 Urlando
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23 da f » CCHh went to Mentbrook Army Air Field,
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the &67th Bomb Souadron
The Base nanme was changed,

o
n June

J

g eV Ea JERR,
in 1943, from

A\

V).
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Orlando Air Bass to Al
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the Pase. The 50th leadouarters went to :lachua Army Alr Field at
P
Gainesville and the vog novedd to Cress City Army Air Field,
e S,

abcut one hundred twenty-Tive miles Yorthvest of Orlando, Tails left the

1 =

Base with the 445%th ¥ ron, the 430th Bomb Syuadron and the

346th 11

In October 1943, about a dozen 4-24's were transferred from the

-

[15th Group to the A45th Fichter Squadron, These planes were further
assigned to D-Flizht, which later became known, in Hovember, as the Tow-
target Detachment of the 445th, The Night Fighters moved to California
and the Tow-target Detachment, made up of personnel drawn from the squad-
rcns of the 50th Group, took over the target assignments for the Control-
Course of

lers the School and Night Searcilight sassignments for the Anti-

aircraft Course. The A-24's were first auyg

sibed with P-70's and these

were later replaced with AT-11's, with special airborne radar equipment.,
In Hovember, the 313th Fighter Squadron was moved from Leesburg to
e —————

the Keystone Avmy Adr

——

I'ield, one hundred miles lorth of Orlando in Northern

17




Florida. The 445th was wmoved to the Leesburg Army air Field, The Tow-

8

target Detachment was left at this Base, however, with the 430th Bomb

- Squadron,

=1

his was at the time that A4FSAT became strictly a school function,
The AAT Tactical Center was formed with a Tuctical Air Division. The
advanced echelon of the TAD was at Gainesville with the 50th Fuignter
Group Headquarters and the 3rd Tactical Reconnaissance Squadron (P-39's)
and the 415th Bemb Group (Dj. The rear echelon of Til was at the Head-
quarters Area in Orlando and operated the 445th at Leesburg and the 10th
at Zephyrhills, through the OUrlando Fighter wing, which was also training
Controllers and Iilter Offiecers., The 313th and 8lst operated under the
advanced echelon of TsD tarough the 50th Group. The objebt of this
entire arrangement was to provide demonstration units for the School of
Applied Tectics,

This plan was scrapped in February 1944. The crgunization had become
too large and unwieldy for its purpose., Outlying units were drawn in
closer to the Orlsndo center, The sir forces had achieved their maximum
goal of groups for cverseas snipment. Therefore, the cadre training

program was dropped for the fizhters, neavy bombers ana service groups.

18



to this country and

AT T T . - " AT L = :
i e three principal orgenizaticns: The WAF &

—— - -

Al e

thool "ol Applizd Tactics; and The AAF Dodrdy




Yy
Lie

s Lasted in the Spring o
onaration the United Sta

e

ind Kissifmia.

coed

un l 0T

s

e

—
tes Am

Yyem
£ =)

%

nt and orza

51N

“le

Tactical

~ o
Lo b

ollare

wader Lond-La:




= {_t v

run wicsions and put on special

senool of s 1iz:d Tactics.

L

located st Codar




Pinecastle, which has & 10,000 foot Horth~South runway, housed two

heavy bomb squadrons. One sgquadron was equipped with B-17's, The other,
which was to train the 5-29 cadres, was eguipped with B-24's.

In lfarch, of 1944, all orgenizations became "School Squadrons.," In
liay, they were all changed to "Ease Units.," In June, the principal
organizations retained their "Base Unit " designations and their subordi-
nate units became lettered "Sections,"” The "Section" designations, of
the subordinate units, were changed to "Squadron! designations in July.

The "Base Unit," as it is used in the present organizatiocn of the
902d AAT Base Unit, really came into being in September and October 1944.
The medium bomb sguadron was moved from Kissimmee to Pinecastle; where it
became a heavy bomb squsdron using both B-17's and B-24's on special
radar projects. The light bomb squadron, equipped with A-20's and A=20!s
remained at Kissinmee,

The plan was to set up a test organization of a "Base Unit" on the
“fhree Directorste System, Kissimmée}and Pinecastle were made satellite”
fields for AAFTAC under direct control of the Tactical Wing, - Kissimuee
was used as tihe "gulnea pig" in tals project because it was a smaller
field and could accoumodate fighters,‘ Un 6 September 1944, the 904th
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to dimprove efficiency and aveid future mistoekes. BLach task must be
carefully analyzed as to time, persormnel and equipment required to
cowplete the mission with tie greatest efficiency, allowance must

always be wade w0 have prorerly trained assistants avallable tc take

over in cacge of leaves, furloughs, passes or sickness. Io section
should ever be so stripped of personuel that the absence of one person
~can render 1t partlally or totally inoperative,

After the twe {ignter squadrons left Urlando, Squadron H, the AFTAC
Flipght section remained. Base Uperations took care of the Transient
Aircraft Section and, in february of 1645, a Foreign Operations Section
was added to service planes and perscnnel of the Uypey Task Force of
the Second Aly Force, Deuorsztrelions were still controlled for AAFSAT
from this Base, A more complete description of these demonstrations
will be taken up in a iater menthly history,

On 15 larch 1945, the Tacticel wing was dissolved, The S03rd AAF
Dase Unit (Pinecastle army Air Field) and the Q04Lth AAF Base Unit
(Kiséimmee Army Air Field) bscamc geparate bases under the AAF Tactical
Center. Howvever, this Base still had to provide certain maintenance and
service fecilities Lo them because they‘were rot completely self-suffici-

ent,
25




This brings to a close the introductory portion of this History.

o menticn has been made of any headquarters organizaticn actually
receding the C02ad AAF Base Unit (Orlando Army Air Base)., This is

because, prior to 15 darch 1945, no such organization really existed,

Por the first time, all of the wvaried military activities in the

Orlando Area were brousnt togather under one unit for administration,

supplies and facilities, Duplicating functicns have been combined or
eliminated end the whele structure has been streamlined.

Cnce agein the reader is reminded that this introduction is not a
complete history of the Crlanco Army nir Base to the present date. It
represents the personal recollections of the writer and is included to

give a general backgrouund of activities in the past al this Base,
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